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LOCAL 2266 
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES  

 
Sean P. Walsh                                               Office: (802) 334-1333 
Vice President                                                                                           Home: (802) 310-2502  
2224 Vt. Rte. 111                                  Email: Local2266@gmail.com 
Derby, Vt. 05829 
 
April 23, 2014 
 
Ronald D. Vitiello  
Deputy Chief Patrol Agent  
U.S. Border Patrol  
1300 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.  
Room 6.5-E  
Washington, D.C. 20229 
 
Cc: Julie Dutton (Chief’s Designee) 
 
Re: Step III Grievance – Union Representative/Official Time  
 
Deputy Chief Patrol Agent Vitiello, 
  
This document constitutes a Step III grievance in accordance with Article 33(E) of the 1995 Collective 
Bargaining Agreement between the National Border Patrol Council and Immigration and Naturalization 
Service (“CBA”). This grievance is being submitted due to Swanton Sector Chief Patrol Agent John 
Pfeifer’s denial of a Step II grievance regarding a Union Representative being unnecessarily removed 
from Official Time and forced to work AUO. In doing so, the Union believes Swanton Sector 
management violated the negotiated CBA, federal labor laws, specifically, 5 U.S.C. § 7131, 5 U.S.C. § 
7102 and 5 U.S.C. § 7116 respectively and the Fair Labor and Standards Act of 1938. 
 
The Step II grievance and its response are attached also for your review.   
 
On February 12, 2014, Union Representative Dolan presented a Step I grievance to PAIC Kuhn and 
DPAIC Qualter regarding being ordered to work AUO after the completion of eight hours of pre-
approved official time.  
  
On Saturday February 15, 2014, PAIC Kuhn informed Union Representative Dolan that he was denying 
the step 1 grievance. The only information or reasons that PAIC Kuhn provided was that Union 
Representative Dolan had 15 days to file a step 2.  
 
On March 3, 2014, NBPC Local 2266 Vice President Sean Walsh submitted a Step II grievance in 
regards to the above mentioned Step I grievance. 
  
On March 20, 2014, Operations Officer “O.O.” Julie Dutton and LER Luis Cadavid (via telephonically) 
met with the Union Representative’s Sean Walsh, Dan Dolan and Darren Elwell to discuss the step II 
grievance. 
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On March 21, 2014, O.O. Julie Dutton requested a two-week extension, “to thoroughly address the 
points brought up at our meeting yesterday…” Subsequently, the Union granted the extension request. 
 
April 1, 2014, O.O. Raulan Masada sent an email to NBPC Local 2266 President Christian Porras. The 
email contained Chief Pfiefer’s denial of the aforementioned Step II grievance. 
  
As presented during the Step I of the grievance, the Union believes that the agency, through its decisions 
and actions involving the Grievant and his conditions of employment, violated, misinterpreted, misapplied 
and breached the CBA, as well as a number of other negotiated policies and agreements, along with 
applicable law, rules and regulations.  
 
The Union believes that the facts of this grievance including the agency’s Step II response, shows that 
Union Representative Dolan should not have been required to remain on duty to process and if so, not on 
AUO. The agency claimed in the Step II response that management had acted in accordance to the 
following. 
 

1. “OPM regulations and the needs of the Service” 
2. Article 6, section C, that states “This does not preclude employees, including those on leave 

without pay, being called back to their official duties when there is an immediate need for their 
services.” 

3. The U.S. Border Patrol policy, titled “Hold Rooms and Short Term Custody” that states, “When 
ever possible, a detainee should not be held for more than 12 hours. Every effort will be made to 
promptly process, transfer, transport, remove, or release those in custody as appropriate and as 
operationally feasible”. 

 
The need for PAIC Kuhn to order Union Representative Dolan to work AUO under any of the three 
justifications given were proven erroneous by the total number of agent’s on-duty. At the time, 
Representative Dolan arrived at the station; there were nine other (9) Border Patrol agents on duty, 
consisting of five various levels of rank. This comprised of, five (5) BPA (not including Dolan), one (1) Intel 
BPA, one (1) SBPA, one (1) DPAIC, one (1) PAIC. The Union believes that the amount of agents and the 
various levels of skill and knowledge did not present an immediate need or an operational need to force a 
Union Representative off Official Time and/or remain on duty while on AUO. According to, 5 C.F.R. § 
5 50.153, “The employee must remain on duty not merely because it is desirable, but because of 
compelling reasons inherently related to continuance of his duties and of such a nature that failure to 
carry on would constitute negligence." 
 
Furthermore, the Union believes the agency contradicted Appendix A of the AUO training guide by 
ordering Representative Dolan to remain on duty to process. Management disregarded Representative 
Dolan’s attempt to inform SBPA Connell that he was not authorized to work AUO due to completing 
eight hours of official time and the work to be completed was not AUO. Therefore, Representative Dolan 
had no part in the decision to remain on duty. The work performed was almost entirely done by entering 
data on a Border Patrol computer system, which is an administrative task. The processing completed was 
administrative in nature and much of it could have been completed the following day. In addition, and by 
the aforementioned facts of the number of agents on duty, another employee without the payment of 
AUO could have accomplished the work Representative Dolan was ordered to complete.  
 
The agency claims that management’s actions complied with the policy “Hold Rooms and Short Term 
Custody” and that “all bargaining unit agents were held to process.” This statement is incorrect as two 
bargaining unit agents that began their shift at 2:00 p.m. and were present at the station before 
Representative Dolan’s arrival, were ordered to the field. If “every effort will be made to promptly 
process, transfer, transport, remove, or release those in custody as appropriate and as operationally 
feasible” why were two BPA’s, three management BPA’s, one Intel BPA, not assigned processing duties? 
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In addition, why was a BPA allowed to go off duty before the completion of all processing, transfers, 
transports, removals, or releases of those apprehended? 
 
The Union believes that the agency’s contention that Representative Dolan did not suffer loss of pay is 
incorrect. He did suffer a loss in pay as AUO is compensated at a rate less then Regularly Scheduled 
Overtime.  
 
 
 
 
REMEDIES 
 

1. Immediate and full adherence to all laws, government-wide regulations and the 1995 Agreement 
between the U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service and the National Border Patrol 
Council (“CBA”). 

 
2. Swanton Sector management, specifically Beecher Falls management, not retaliate on any 

bargaining unit member for their involvement in protected Union activities.  
 

3. Post a notice signed by the Chief Patrol Agent, Swanton Sector, which acknowledges the agency's 
violations of the Collective Bargaining Agreement in this case as well as the remedial efforts that it 
will undertake to make the Grievant whole. The notice will be written to the satisfaction of the 
Union and given to the Union for approval prior distribution. 

 
4. Swanton Sector financially makes whole, Union Representative Dolan the overtime 45 act for the 

performance of his duties on January 3, 2014. 
 

5. Reimbursement for any legal fees incurred by the Union, to include all costs of hiring attorneys, 
arbitrators, court reporters, and any other expenses, in an effort to resolve this violation. 

 
6. And any other remedy deemed appropriate. 

 
 

 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Sean Walsh 
Vice President 
NBPC Local 2266 
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